
**CLEARVIEW LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.**

BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Record and return to:

Clearview Lake Property Owners' Association
P.O. Box 375
Augusta, NJ 07822

ARTICLE 1. NAME

The name of this organization is the Clearview Lake Property Owners Association, Inc. hereinafter referred to as the "CLPOA".

ARTICLE 2. BUSINESS ADDRESS

The CLPOA maintains a business address at Post Office Box 375, Augusta, New Jersey, 07822.

ARTICLE 3. IDENTITY

A. The CLPOA functions as a non-profit corporation in the State of New Jersey. Its certificate of incorporation was filed with the Secretary of State on August 18, 1989

B. Upon dissolution of this corporation, and after all debts are satisfied, all assets shall be sold, and monies generated shall be distributed, in equal parts, to various charities.

ARTICLE 4. PURPOSES

The CLPOA shall:

A. Promote the general welfare and common good of property owners within the Clearview Lake community.

B. Provide policy, direction and control of community affairs within the community.

C. Purchase, hold, maintain, develop, improve and deal in common-use real estate and real property, or any interest therein which the CLPOA deems necessary for furthering its purposes, including, but not limited to the sale of any such real estate and real property.

D. If acquired, and to the extent that funds permit, maintain and care for all common facilities within the lake community, including, but not limited to roads, dam, beaches, spillway, and the lake proper.

E. Provide for the sports of boating, swimming, fishing and other recreational activities, as circumstances permit which the CLPOA deems appropriate.

F. Provide public access to the roads and lake.

G. Represent the residents of CLPOA in community and municipal affairs.

H. Exercise all prudent measures reasonably related to the health, comfort, enjoyment, safety and security of CLPOA members and their properties.

I. All activities undertaken by CLPOA on behalf of its members shall be dependent on availability of adequate funds.

ARTICLE 5. AUTHORIZATION TO ACT

A. The CLPOA is authorized to act on behalf of its members in all matters affecting the lake community and/or its environs. The CLPOA is the responsible agent for the transaction of all business necessary or desirable for the best interests of its membership.

B. In order to fulfill its purposes and carry out its fiscal responsibilities, the CLPOA is authorized to levy dues, assessments and/or special fees. Such dues, assessments and /or fees constitute liens upon all real property individually or collectively owned within the lake community. Non-payment thereof is subject to collection measures. Authorization is conveyed by Article 13 of the Clearview Lake Deed Restrictions, Book 612, recorded in the Hall of Records, Newton, New Hersey, on July 24, 1957. The restrictions contained in said book are illustrative of the deed restrictions attached to each member's deed at the time of purchase. The restrictions run with each member's land and the common areas of CLPOA.

C. The CLPOA shall establish policies and procedures regarding membership, payment of all monies due and owing, and the use of common facilities within the community.

D. The CLPOA is authorized to engage in other practical activities necessary and/or desirable for carrying out its purposes. Such activities include, but are not limited to, payment of any debts lawfully incurred, enforcing the rules and Regulations as set forth in this document, and any other worthwhile, lawful measure intended to promote the common good of its members.

ARTICLE 6. DUES AND ASSESMENTS

A. All persons, associations, corporations, or other legal entities owning real property within the boundaries of the Clearview Lake community shall be assessed annually for association dues which shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with the By-laws.

B. The amount of the assessment shall be established by the Board of Directors in the annual budget and submitted to the membership for review at its May meeting, and approval at its September meeting. An affirmative vote by the majority of a quorum of the members-in-good-standing who are present at the September meeting shall be required for budget approval. Proxy votes shall be allowed. Increases so voted shall take effect on October 1 of the next fiscal year.

C. The Board of Directors may levy additional assessments for special projects/needs within the lake community. A quorum of the members-in-good-standing must be present at a meeting to approve any special assessments. Proxy votes shall be allowed.

D. Homeowners, whether year-round or seasonal, shall be assessed the same amount. Persons who rent out their homes are required to pay the full dues assessment.

E. Lotowners shall be assessed as follows:

1. Lots which are contiguous to the lot on which their home(s) is/are built shall receive no additional assessment.

2. Lots which are separate from their house(s) shall be assessed individually. Multiple lots, if contiguous, shall be assessed as one lot.

F. Property owners whose property(ies) front on township roads shall be required to pay full yearly dues assessment. Property owners whose property(ies) front on county roads, and wish to use the lake facilities, shall be required to pay one-half yearly dues assessment.

G. All dues, assessments, fees or charges shall be due and payable by the last day of the fiscal year, September 30.

1. A late fee of \$50 per year shall be assessed for any and all delinquent dues.

2. Failure to pay dues by the due date, shall subject the property owner to collection procedures and all costs involved, including, but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees plus all disbursements, including but not limited to filing fees, court costs, pre-judgment and post-judgment interest, which shall be assessed to the property owner and included in any collection action against the delinquent property owner.

3. Unpaid dues, assessments, fees or charges shall constitute a lien against the property in question. Upon delinquency, a Notice of Lis Pendens shall be filed with the Sussex County Clerk as evidence of the lien. The costs for the filing of the Notice of Lis Pendens shall be assessed to the property owner and be included in any amount due. Upon payment of the past due balance, a Discharge of Lis Pendens shall be forwarded to the property owner and the responsibility of filing and the costs involved shall be borne by the property owner.

H. CLPOA members shall be required to furnish to the Corresponding Secretary a current address to which all notices and documents concerning CLPOA business may be sent. Such notices and documents shall be help to have been duly sent to, or served upon a member when mailed to or otherwise delivered to that address.

ARTICLE 7. MEMBERSHIP

A. Membership is mandatory for all property owners within Clearview Lake as all properties are Deed restricted as outlined in Article 5.B. Payment of all outstanding and current dues assessments is required for membership-in-good-standing. Only members-in-good-standing shall have voting privileges.

B. Each household shall have one (1) vote and each lot owner, regardless of the number of lots owned, shall have one (1) vote. Homeowners who also own one or more lots which are not adjacent to their home, or who own a second house within the community, shall have only one (1) vote. Tenants may not vote.

C. New homeowners or lotowners shall be invoiced for dues in the fall of the year in which they take up residence within the community or assume title to their property. To vote on any matter before the association, new property owners shall be required to prepay their dues assessment before the meeting at which they plan to vote.

D. Members of the immediate family of dues-paying members who reside within the same household shall have non-voting CLPOA privileges. Tenants shall have non-voting CLPOA privileges provided that the landlord's (or lessor's) dues are paid to date.

E. Members shall be held accountable for, and where applicable, liable for the conduct of household guests, and/or tenants and their guests.

ARTICLE 8. VOTING

Whenever the vote of the members is required or permitted by any provision of these by-laws, in connection with and action of the Board of Directors, the vote, in order to be valid, must be conducted in accordance with the following:

A. Votes must be cast in person or by proxy at a meeting of the Membership called and held in compliance with Article 15.

B. If the association dues and/or a special assessment and/or related interest charges or costs are not paid when due, the vote for such a member shall be lost as long as any delinquency continues.

C. Method of Voting:

1. A vote may be cast in person at the meeting at which the subject is being voted upon.
2. A vote may be cast by filing a proxy as hereinafter provided:

a. The Corresponding Secretary shall be responsible for providing each member with an official form for voting by proxy. This form shall:

I. Be enclosed with the Notice required in Article 15(B).

II. Set forth, but not limited to, the following items: the issues to be voted upon by the membership, a place for the member to indicate his vote, a signature line and a return address.

b. The member voting by proxy shall complete the proxy form, sign it and return it to the address indicated on the form to arrive prior to the meeting for which the notice was sent, In the alternative, the member may personally deliver the proxy to a Director prior to or at the time of the meeting.

c. Each proxy so filed, which represents a vote cast in compliance with Article 8, shall represent the vote of that member at that meeting as if the vote were cast in person at that meeting.

d. The proxies provided for in this section shall only be valid for the particular meeting designated thereon, and any adjourned meeting thereof.

3. A vote may be cast by absentee ballot as hereinafter provided:

a. The Corresponding Secretary shall be responsible for providing each member with an official form for voting by absentee ballot. This form shall:

I. Be enclosed with the Notice required in Article 15(B)

II. Set forth, but not limited to, the following items: the issues to be voted upon by the membership and a place for the ember to indicate his vote.

b. The member voting by absentee ballot shall complete the absentee ballot form, sign it and return it to the address indicated on the form to arrive prior to the meeting for which the notice was sent. In the alternative, the member may personally deliver the absentee ballot to a director prior to or at the time of the meeting.

c. Each absentee ballot so filed, which represents a vote cast in compliance with Article 8, shall represent the vote of that person at that meeting as if the vote were cast in person at that meeting.

d. The absentee ballots provided for in this section shall only be valid for the particular meeting designated thereon, and any adjourned meeting thereof.

D. Determination of Voting Results. A majority of total eligible votes present, in person or by proxy, at that meeting where a quorum has been established shall decide the questions unless the By-laws provide otherwise in which event the percentage of votes required shall control.

ARTICLE 9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Number. The Board of Directors shall consist of twelve (12) members, five (5) of whom shall be officers. Board members shall be members-in-good-standing.

B. Powers and duties of Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall set forth policy and procedures, manage and oversee all CLPOA business as well as committee activities, oversee collection and disbursement of all monies, provide financial planning, enforce the By-laws, Rules and Regulations, and generally administer any other matters related to CLPOA purposes, as set forth in the By-laws and Articles of Incorporation. The Rules and Regulations shall be an attachment to the By-laws.

1. The said powers of the Board shall specifically include but shall not be limited to:

- a. Sue or defend litigation on behalf of and in the Board's name.
- b. Engage and dismiss employees and agents, and define the duties and fix the compensation thereof.
- c. Prepare an annual budget to be proposed at the May General Meeting
- d. Determine, levy and collect, pursuant to the budget, the association dues and to use and expend such funds in accordance with the budget.
- e. To make special assessments in accordance with these By-laws.

f. To revoke the privileges, services or rights of any member who fails to pay his Association Dues or special assessments.

g. Purchase supplies, materials, equipment and other personal property necessary for the maintenance and upkeep of the common areas.

h. To borrow money and issue its notes, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness necessary to secure such loans. Provided, however, that any loan obtained on behalf of the Board shall have the prior approval of the quorum of the membership-in-good-standing and in no event shall the Board pledge as security for any loan in excess of ten percent (10%) of the real assets owned by CLPOA unless same shall receive prior approval of the quorum of the membership-in-good-standing.

i. Enter into contracts, agreements, mortgages and other written instruments or documents and authorize the execution, delivery and if appropriate, the recording thereof by the Recording Secretary.

j. Make rules and regulations governing and administering the use and enjoyment of the common elements of CLPOA.

k. Enforce the provisions of the By-laws.

l. To take such other action(s) and accomplish such things as are necessary to promote, administer, regulate, promulgate and govern the welfare, best interests, social and recreational interest of the members, and the administration and management of CLPOA.

2. Duties. The duties of the Board shall specifically include but not be limited to the following:

a. The maintenance and upkeep of the common areas of the Association

b. Payment of all debts expenses of CLPOA.

c. The enforcement of the provisions of the Restrictive Covenants, By-laws and Rules and Regulations.

d. The promotion of the welfare and best interests of the membership of CLPOA.

e. The performance of such other duties which may be imposed upon the Board from time to time pursuant to law or the provisions of these By-laws.

C. Chair of the Board. The President shall be designated as the Chair of the Board and shall preside at all Board meetings. The President shall have non-voting status, except in case of a tie.

D. Board Meeting Minutes. Minutes of all Board Meetings shall be made available at all general and/or special meetings.

E. Removal. Any Director may be removed from his position at any time by a majority of the Board of Directors, with just cause whenever in the best judgement of the Board members the interests of CLPOA will best be served.

F. Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by sending written notice of same to the Recording Secretary. Resignation shall take effect upon acceptance by the Board of Directors.

G. Vacancy, Vacancies caused by removal, resignation or death shall be filled by a member-in-good-standing recommended by the President with approval by the majority of the Board of Directors. Such successor shall serve for the balance of the unexpired term of the Director whom he/she replaces.

ARTICLE 10. INDEMNIFICATION

A. All members of the Board of Directors, including officers, shall be indemnified to the fullest extent now or hereafter permitted by law in connection with any actual or threatened action or proceeding, including civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, arising from their service to the CLPOA or to another organization at the request of the CLPOA.

B. The provisions of this section shall be applicable to actions or proceedings commencing after the adoption hereof, whether arising from acts or omissions occurring before or after the adoption hereof, and also to persons who have ceased to be members of the Board of Directors, and shall enure to the benefit of their heirs, executors and administrators. Expenses involved with this indemnification shall be borne by the CLPOA.

C. The provisions of this section are not applicable to any members of the Board of Directors, including officers, whether past or present, who has been finally adjudged in any actual or threatened action, as described in Article 10(A), to be liable for or guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct.

ARTICLE 11. BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

A. All members of the Board of Directors shall meet monthly, except for December, at a time and place to be determined by the Board.

B. The President may call a special meeting of the Board whenever necessary.

C. A majority of Directors shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business (seven (7) including one (1) officer). Action of the quorum shall be considered the act of the Board.

D. Directors shall notify the Recording Secretary if unable to attend any Board or General meeting.

E. Any Director who is absent from three (3) consecutive Board meetings without good cause shall be automatically terminated. The Corresponding Secretary shall notify the member by mail of this action.

ARTICLE 12 OFFICERS

A. Officers shall consist of the President, Vice-President, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, and Treasure. All Officers must be members-in-good-standing.

B. Duties and Responsibilities:

1. The President shall:

a. Call and preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors as well as the semi-annual general membership meetings.

b. Prepare agendas for such meetings.

c. Administer and direct all CLPOA affairs according to policies enacted by the Board of Directors.

d. Appoint all committee chairpersons.

e. Answer or cause to be answered all correspondence.

f. With the Vice-President, shall sign all contracts and other formal documents with the prior approval of the Board.

g. With the Treasurer, shall sign all checks drawn on Association funds with prior approval of the Board.

- h. Recommend persons to fill un-expired terms on the Board of Directors.
- i. Hire counsel and outside auditor, if necessary, as approved by the Board, whose compensation is to be approved by the Board.

2. The Vice-President shall:

- a. Act for and in place of the President in his/her absence.
- b. Shall assume the office of President, should it be vacated, for the balance of the un-expired term.
- c. With the President, sign all contracts and other formal documents with prior approval of the Board and the general membership where appropriate.
- d. Collect from the CLPOA post office box and deposit in the CLPOA checking account all dues and other monies received. The Vice-President and the Treasurer shall each have a key to the post office box and the safety deposit box.
- e. Perform other administrative duties at the request of the President.

3. The Recording Secretary shall:

- a. Record the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and general membership.
- b. Act for, or in place of both the President and Vice-President should both be absent.
- c. Prepare any corporate reports that might be required by the State of New Jersey.
- d. Perform other duties as requested by the President.

4. The Corresponding Secretary shall:

- a. Answer and maintain records of all correspondence involving CLPOA activities.

- b. Notify CLPOA membership of all general or special meetings, such notice to include anticipated agenda, proxy votes and absentee ballots.
- c. Perform other duties requested by the President.

5. The Treasurer shall:

- a. Maintain all CLPOA financial records, accounts, and related correspondence in an accurate fashion. Maintain any separate accounts as approved by the Board.
- b. Submit a financial report at each Board meeting as well as at each general meeting.
- c. Present a list of bills to be paid to the Board at each monthly meeting for approval before payment. May pay bills of \$100.00 or less without approval, provided such payments are discussed at the Board meeting subsequent to the payment date.
- d. With the President, sign all checks for disbursement of CLPOA funds.
- e. Issue dues assessment invoices years, prior to the end of the current fiscal year, such notices to include interest from the date of delinquency, legal costs, and any other costs that the CLPOA may have incurred with respect to collection procedures.
- f. Chair budget committee to plan annual budget.
- g. Maintain all membership records as reflected by current dues-paying status. Share same with both secretaries
- h. Maintain CLPOA accounts as designated by the Board.
- i. Prepare all CLPOA books for review by a Certified Public Accountant at the end of the fiscal year.
- j. Prepare any corporate tax statements as required by the State or Federal government. Such statements must be reviewed by a Board member other than the President before submission.
- k. Maintain a set of keys for the post office box and the safety deposit box.

- I. Prepare a complete statement of bank deposits made.
- m. Conduct other duties as requested by the President.

C. Removal. Any Officer may be removed from his position at any time by a majority of the Board of Directors, with just cause whenever in the best judgement of the board members the interests of CLPOA will best be served.

D. Resignation. Any Officer may resign at any time by sending written notice of same to the Recording Secretary. Resignation shall take effect upon acceptance by the Board of Directors.

E. Vacancy. Vacancies caused by removal, resignation or death shall be filled by a member-in-good-standing recommended by the President with approval by the majority of the Board of Directors. Such successor shall serve for the balance of the unexpired term of the Officer whom he/she replaces.

ARTICLE 13. ELECTIONS/TERMS OF OFFICE

A. The President shall appoint a three (3) member Nominating Committee from the general membership. This committee shall propose candidates for Officers and Directors. No potential candidate for office, nor any member of the candidate's immediate family, may serve on this committee.

B. All candidates must be members-in-good-standing.

C. Absentee ballots shall be included in the notice of the general meeting which is to be sent to all members-in-good-standing at least two (2) weeks prior to the May meeting. Nominations shall be permitted from the floor at this meeting.

D. Voting for officers and Directors shall be by secret ballot cast in person. The Nominating Committee shall tally all ballots at the May meeting. Officers and Directors shall be elected by majority vote of the quorum of members-in-good-standing. Results shall be announced by the President.

E. Officers and Directors so elected shall begin their terms of office immediately following the election, and shall without compensation. Officers shall serve for three (3) years, and may succeed themselves in office.

F. Officers shall rotate as follows:

- a. In the first year of rotation, the President and the Treasurer shall be elected.

b. In the second year, the Vice-President and Corresponding Secretary shall be selected.

c. In the third year, the Recording Secretary shall be elected.

G. In the initial year of rotation, the seven (7) directors shall be elected as follows, with each such director, after the initial term, to be elected or re-elected for a term of three (3) years thereafter:

a. Three (3) shall be elected for three (3) years.

b. Two (2) shall be elected for two (2) years.

c. Two (2) shall be elected for one (1) year.

H. The President, with approval of the majority of the Board of Directors, shall appoint a member-in-good-standing to fill any un-expired term on the Board until the next general election. This person shall have been a member-in-good-standing.

ARTICLE 14. COMMITTEES

A. Committees shall be appointed at the discretion of the President.

ARTICLE 15. MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERSHIP

A. Place. The CLPOA shall meet at such a place as shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

B. Notices. It shall be the duty of the Corresponding Secretary to mail or deliver a notice of each General Meeting or Special Meeting, stating the time and place and purpose thereof, to each member-in-good-standing at least two (2) weeks prior to each meeting. A tentative agenda, to be set by the President with suggestions from the membership, shall be sent with each meeting notice. If a vote is part of the agenda, a proxy form and absentee ballot form shall be included with the notice. A proposed budget for the next fiscal year and any nominations for the elective office shall be included in the Notice of the May meeting.

C. General Meetings. The CLPOA shall meet in two (2) General Meetings each year, in May and in September.

D. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members for any purpose, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the President upon seven (7) days notice to each member-in-good-standing. The Notice shall set forth the purpose or purposes of the

stated meeting. Business transacted at all Special Meetings shall be confined to the subject stated in the Notice thereof.

E. Quorum. A quorum shall consist of at least ten percent (10%) of the members-in-good-standing. If less than ten percent (10%) of the membership are present, the decision whether to commence business rests with the Board of Directors, who must approve by majority vote.

F. Robert's Rules of Order. Robert's Rules of Order shall serve as the parliamentary authority for the CLPOA, provided these are consistent with the CLPOA By-laws. The President shall appoint a member of the Board of Directors to serve as Parliamentarian.

G. Adjourned Meeting. If any meeting cannot be organized because a quorum of voting members is not present, either in person or by proxy, the meeting may be adjourned from time to time until a quorum is present.

ARTICLE 16. CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY

A. No real property shall be sold, purchased, mortgaged, or otherwise encumbered, except by affirmative concurring vote of a majority of the Board of Directors.

B. No personal property, valued at or above Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00), shall be bought or sold except by affirmative concurring vote of the majority of the Board of Directors plus the majority of a quorum of members-in-good-standing.

C. All property, real or personal, shall be held in the name of the CLPOA, and shall be conveyed by the President and the Vice-President and attested by the Recording Secretary.

ARTICLE 17. FISCAL YEAR

A. The fiscal year of the CLPOA shall run from October 1 to September 30.

ARTICLE 18. FINANCES

A. CLPOA funds shall be deposited in a bank operating in the State of New Jersey, deposits of such bank to be guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

B. The budget shall be approved before any funds are expended for the prospective year. All expenditures of funds shall follow the procedures outlined in Article 12.

C. CLPOA books shall be reviewed annually by a Certified Public Accountant. The treasurer shall yield the books for this purpose.

ARTICLE 19. AMENDMENTS TO THE BY-LAWS

A. Any member, Officer or Director may present a proposed Bylaws amendment, in writing, to the Board of Directors at least one (1) month prior to any general meeting to allow time for the proposed amendment to be sent to all members with the meeting notice, two (2) weeks prior to the meeting. The amendment must be approved by a majority of members in good standing who attend the meeting. Proxy votes shall be accepted.

ARTICLE 20. RULES AND REGULATIONS

A. The attached Rules and Regulations shall be considered part of, but may not conflict or supersede, the By-laws.

B. The Rules and Regulations may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 21. ADOPTION OF BY-LAWS

Adoption of the By-laws and Rules and Regulations shall be effective upon the recommendation of the Board of Directors and subsequent approval of the majority of the quorum of members-in-good-standing present at a general meeting and by proxy votes.

ARTICLE 22. ROAD POLICY

The Clearview Lake Guideline regarding roads and initiation fees:

1. Purchase of a Residential/Single Family Existing Structure on Improved Roads (Tar and Chip and/or Asphalt Millings) – a one (1) time initiation fee of Three Hundred Dollars (\$300.00) shall be charged.

2. Purchase of a Residential/Single Family Existing Structure on Unimproved Roads (Dirt/ Asphalt Millings) – a one (1) time initiation fee of Three Hundred Dollars (\$300.00) shall be charged.

3. Building of a Residential/Single Family New Structure on Improved Roads (Tar and Chip and/or Asphalt Millings) – the fee schedule for the one (1) time initiation fee is as follows:

- | | | |
|----|-----------------------------|--------------|
| a. | Less than 2,000 Square Feet | - \$2,000.00 |
| b. | 2,000 – 3,000 Square Feet | - \$4,000.00 |
| c. | 3,000 Plus Square Feet | - \$6,000.00 |

4. Building of a Residential/Single Family New Structure on an Un-improved Road (Dirt/Asphalt Millings) – the fee schedule for the one (1) time initiation fee is as follows:

- | | | |
|----|-----------------------------|--------------|
| a. | Less than 2,000 Square Feet | - \$3,000.00 |
| b. | 2,000 – 3,000 Square Feet | - \$5,000.00 |
| c. | 3,000 Plus Square Feet | - \$7,000.00 |

Square footage shall be defined as the measurement of the new building area/all floor areas as noted in the building permit application to be filed with the Township concerning the lot in question.

The cost of building a New Residential/Single Family Structure on a “Paper Road” shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. The CLPOA Board of Directors shall levy the fee.

All disbursements shall be made at closing or before construction begins, and shall be directly deposited into the treasury of the CLPOA. It is mandatory that all homeowners join the CLPOA.

5. Temporary Closure of “Paper Roads”

Purpose: To temporarily close roads or sections thereof in the Clearview Lake Community that are currently not maintained. Such roads either pass by vacant lots or are not the primary route to an individual’s residence. The police, fire departments and other emergency services will be provided with an updated map of the community, noting these temporary closures, in the hope of reducing response time.

Temporarily closed roads may be re-opened in the future by writing to the CLPOA Board of Directors and asking permission. This would be done to construct a new home, gain another access, or for other valid reasons determined necessary by the Board of Directors. The cost of re-opening these temporarily closed roads will be borne by the petitioner.

Any person travelling on these temporarily closed roads will assume all responsibility and liability for any injuries.

- | | |
|---|------------------------|
| 1. Circle Drive (Clearview Circle) | 8. Lower Van Atta |
| 2. Tulip Street | 9. West Longview |
| 3. East Longview (connected with Tulip) | 10. Upper Foley |
| 4. Hilltop | 11. Poplar |
| 5. Lower Pine | 12. Rose |
| 6. Lower Grove | 13. Lower Hillside |
| 7. Elm | 14. Upper Spruce |
| | 15. Far North Highland |

6. Tar and Chip Schedule (adopted May 29, 1997)

When funds are available, the following roads will be redone with tar and chip in the order below. Dates of completion will be recorded. Any new roads will be added after Number 13 and then return to Number 1.

	Approximate Cost
1. Highland/Knoll/Spruce (loop)	\$8,000.00
2. Clearview (to the dam)	\$3,500.00
3. Clearview (dam to Haggerty)	\$3,500.00
4. Tooley (Main Road to Lakewood)	\$3,000.00
5. Lakewood	\$3,500.00
6. Hemlock	\$2,500.00
7. Woody Lane/Clearview/Top of Pine/ Cypress (loop)	\$2,500.00
8. Cypress/Van Atta/Highview (loop)	\$2,500.00
9. Cypress	\$1,000.00
10. Holly/Longview/Cherry/Foley (loop)	\$2,000.00
11. Willow/Maple and Crescent	\$2,000.00
12. Hampton/Tall Oaks/Grove/Longview/ Spruce (off Highland)	\$2,600.00
13. Willow to Meadow Loop	\$3,000.00

CLEARVIEW LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

RULES AND REGULATIONS

1. **DUES ASSESSMENT** - An annual dues assessment for all property owners for the upcoming fiscal year will be sent by the Board of Directors, with the approval of a majority of the members-in-good-standing present at the May meeting. Current dues will be payable by the end of the current fiscal year (September 30) as stipulated in the By-laws. See Article 6.
2. **UNAUTHORIZED HOUSING** - House trailers or mobile homes of any type are not to be used as a residence within Clearview Lake.
3. **USE OF FACILITIES** - All State of New Jersey Rules and Regulations regarding boating shall be observed, including registration and licensing, where required. The CLPOA reserves the right to restrict boating beyond what the State of New Jersey allows. Boats powered by internal combustion engines are not permitted on the lake. Life vests and jackets must be worn at all times or floatation cushions must be present in the boat. No boats or other watercraft are permitted on the lake before sunrise or after sunset.

Children under ten (10), or any child who does not know how to swim, must be accompanied by a responsible adult when in the water, in or on a watercraft, or otherwise near the lake.

Swimming, boating, use of roads and any other public facilities will be at the user's own risk. This extends to recreational use of the lake when frozen, including ice-skating and ice-fishing.

4. **Public Conduct** - No loitering or group gatherings will be permitted after 10:00 PM April 1st – October 31st on roads, beaches, or on any property unless by invitation of the owner. From November 1st – March 31st, groups may not gather after 7:00 PM. No open alcoholic beverages are permitted in automobiles, on beaches, or on properties, unless by invitation of the owner.

Excessive noise is not allowed within the lake community. This extends to house parties, radios or other sound sources, motor vehicles, vehicle horns, whistles, sirens, and any other source of potential noise which constitutes a public nuisance. Construction noise is permitted between 7:00 AM and 6:00 PM only. Use of road improvement equipment is permitted until sunset. See Hampton Township noise ordinance.

Malicious mischief and vandalism will not be tolerated. Parents will be held responsible for the public conduct of their children, and will be held legally liable for any property damage or injury caused by their children. Members are urged to report all violators to the State Police and local authorities.

5. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPECT - Dumping and littering on or near roads, on improved or unimproved lots, or in the lake or streams, is strictly forbidden. Members are urged to report all violators to the State Police and local authorities.

Residents are expected to keep their properties free of debris, litter, unregistered vehicles and parts thereof, garbage, construction materials, tires, and any other material which is unsightly. Residents are also expected to keep their homes in good repair, including exterior painting, their yards neat, and their bushes and shrubbery trimmed.

Empty garbage cans may not be left at curbside between weekly pickups. Garbage, which is not picked up on collection day, is to be removed from the curbside and stored properly until the following collection. Materials which are not picked up on recycle or bulk pickup days may not be left at curbside.

Septic runoff into the lake pollutes and clouds the water, encourages algae and weed overgrowth, and kills fish. Residents who live along the shore are urged to have their septic tanks pumped every three (3) years to protect the lake.

Fertilizers, herbicides, and other potentially hazardous chemicals should be used with discretion on properties along the shore. Leaves, brush, grass clippings, and weeds shall not be dumped into the lake or streams.

6. VEHICULAR TRAFFIC - Clearview Lake roads are owned by the CLPOA, but are opened to the general public on an unlimited basis.

All vehicles which use the roads such as cars, vans, trucks and motorcycles must be registered, insured and licensed with the New Jersey Motor Vehicle Commission. These vehicles must have proper mufflers or will not be permitted on the roads. All dirt bikes, mopeds, three (3) and four (4) wheel All-Terrain-Vehicles and snowmobiles are banned for use on community roads or the lake.

A 20 mile per hour limit will be enforced on all roads, This applies to cars, vans, trucks and motorcycles. Signs will be posted. Any person, regardless of age, who drives recklessly in the community, will be reported to the police and will also be subject to disciplinary action by the Board of Directors. Parents are responsible for the behavior of their minor children in this regard, and members are responsible for the behavior of their guests as well.

7. PARKING ON LAKE ROADS - No parking is allowed on any roads within Clearview Lake from November 1st until April 30th between the hours of 9:00 PM and 6:00 AM daily (to allow for overnight snowplowing. If a vehicle is disabled and cannot be moved, the CLPOA should be notified promptly.

8. LAW AND ORDER - CLPOA reserves the right to protect its members and their property with the aid of the police or any other lawful body of the State of New Jersey at any time that it feels necessary. Non-members, as well as members, are subject to the full penalty of the law if such are broken within the Clearview Lake community.

9. MISCELLANEOUS - All members must abide by State laws governing hunting, fishing, fire prevention, and the use of firearms. No hunting or discharge of firearms within community boundaries is allowed. Dogs must be licensed and leashed at all times, unless contained on the owner's property. Dogs must not be allowed to soil on neighboring properties. The Hampton Township Leash Law applies within Clearview Lake. Homeowners are expected to provide a copy of these Rules and Regulations to their tenants. Tenants are subject to all of these Rules and Regulations.

10. COUNTY FILING - A copy of the CLPOA Bylaws, Rules and Regulations shall be filed in the office of the Sussex County Clerk so that purchasers of properties within the Clearview Lake are aware of the obligations they assume with their purchase. Moreover, public notice is hereby made of a seller's obligation to discharge in full all dues, assessments, or other indebtedness owed to the CLPOA.

11. AMENDMENTS – The Board of Directors reserves the right to amend a Rule or Regulation as the situation warrants, by a majority vote. All Rules and Regulations prescribed by the Board of Directors are incorporated within the Bylaws, thereby having the same force and effect as any provision thereof.

Adopted September 28, 1990

Amended February 6, 1992

Amended July 20, 1994

Amended October 20, 1994

Amended January 19, 1995

Amended May 22, 1995

Amended June 14, 1997
Amended September, 1998
Amended May, 2001
Amended May 24, 2016
Amended Sept 30, 2019

ATTEST:

CLEARVIEW LAKE PROPERTY
OWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Timothy Duvelsdorf, President

Dennis Burke, Vice President

STATE OF NEW JERSEY :
: SS
COUNTY OF SUSSEX :

I **CERTIFY** that on July 1, 2001, **TIMOTHY DUVELSDORF** and **DENNIS BURKE** personally came before me and these persons acknowledged under oath, to my satisfaction, that:

(a) they signed, sealed and delivered the attached document as President and Vice President of **CLEARVIEW LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.** the corporation named in this document;

(b) the proper corporate seal was affixed; and

(c) this document was signed and made by the corporation as its voluntary act and deed by virtue of authority from its Board of Directors.